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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

LOCATION, SETTING AND GROUNDS :

This 1799 wooden frame cottage is located approximately 1,300
feet back from the Kennebec River at the top of the hillside of
Hallowell. This location borders on the residential area. The
setting is pastoral. The cottage today is the central dwelling
house in a farm complex. The cottage, facing south, is about
200 feet removed from the Litchfield Road to the south and 200
feet west of Middle Street. The out-buildings, which are adjacent
to the cottage, include a garage,storehouse and barns which
shelter Guernsey cattle and store the produce of a model. farm.
The grounds are enclosed by a post and rail fence. There are
lush lawns, gardens and hedges interspaced between the elm trees;
whence, the name Elm Hill Farm, is aptly derived.

BASIC STRUCTURE AND BUILDING MATERIALS:

Original Appearance: The cottage was built on a square plan with
a Iow-pitched gabled roof. The octagonal bay of the dining room
shows only from the rear of the tbuse. The interior plan includes
a central hall with two rooms at either side, a chimmey in the
partition between front and rear rooms. The stairs are. located
off the dining room which is unusual. The hall is lined with
book shelves behind paneled doors. The cottage in 1799 was
sheathed with hand shaped clapboard; these are in place today.

Present Appearance:The dormers were added later and presently
there are four bedrooms, two baths and a Iargé central hall up-
stairs. Probably the upstairs was divided differently, but there
is one fireplace existing and hearths in the other rooms.There
is nothing above the dining room. There is, today, a full cellar
with an outside bulkhead entrance way. The cottage is painted
white. The window and front door blinds are black. The windows,
12 lights each, and frames, are probably not original. The front
door and fan light above are original and the steps up to the
threshold.are granite, grist mill wheel sections. A two-story
ell has been built for additional living and service space. This
is attached midway back on the west side wall of the cottage.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The name of John Meﬁéick is closely associated with that of Dr.
Benjamin Vaughan and of Charles Vaughan, Esq. These first re-

presentatives of the Merrick and Vaughan families in Hallowell
came from England and settled side by side on the banks of the

Kennebec River.

Mr. John Merrick was born in London, August 27, 1766. He re-
ceived a thorough classical education and having completed a
divinity course, Mr. Merrick preached at Stamford, but was
never ordained to the ministry. From 1794 to 1797, he resided
with the family of Dr. Benjamin Vaughan in the capacity of
tutor; and in 1795 he accompanied Mrs. Vaughan and her children
to New England. '

In 1797, Mr. Merrick returned to England where he married
Rebecca Vaughan, daughter of Samuel Vaughan, and sister of Dr.
Benjamin and Charles Vaughan, and brought his bride at once to
Hallowell. Here he built and occupied the spacious cottage
which stands upon one of the most beautiful sites in the town,
and which is still known as the Merrick Cottage. At the time of
his coming to Hallowell, the village was rapidly increasing in
population; and Mr. Merrick entered most heartily into the
spirit of the place and devoted all his energies to the promo-
tion of the public welfare. He was especially interested in the
cause of education. In 1802, he was appointed one of the
Trustees of the Hallowell Academy; and for the remainder of his
long life, he devoted himself to the interests of this school.

Mr. Merrick was also a member of the Board of Overseers of
Bowdoin College from 1805 to 1851.

In the affairs of the town, Mr. Merrick showed himself a truly
loyal and public-spirited citizen. He served ably and conscien-
tiously as Selectman, as Surveyor of Highways, and as Overseer
of the Poor. He was also for some years cashier of the
Hallowell Bank.

In 1810, a project was started for the opening of a road from
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The Kennebec to the Chaudiere and thence to Quebec, which, it was
thought, would greatly increase the business of this region and
open an avenue from the Atlantic to Canada. Mr. Merrick was ap-
pointed by Governor Gore to be a member of a Board of
Commissioners to further this project.

He made the first recording of a trial in shorthand.

He was an accurate mathematician, surveyor, and navigator. He
devoted much time to the study of geology and astronomy, and in-
vented a new practical method for mapping out the heavens. He had
also a thorough knowledge of anatomy, and in cases of necessity
proved himself an excellent surgeon, With all this, Mr. Merrick
possessed the most highly cultivated literary and musical tastes.

John died October 22, 1862 at the advanced age of 96.

The Merrick house passed at one time out of the possession of the
Merrick family, and was owned by Captain Swanton and afterwards
by Governor Bodwell. It was purchased by Henry Vaughan, Esq., the
son of Benjamin Vaughan, and a lineal descendant through his
maternal line, from Samuel Merrick, the brother of Mr. John
Merrick. Mr. Vaughan restored the house as nearly as possible to
its original condition. Such a house, with its many hallowed
associations, is a rare and valuable possession, not only to its
owner, but to the town that claims it among the oldest and most
interesting of its ancient dwellings.
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